UNITED STATES
NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION

REGION IV

611 RYAN PLAZA DRIVE, SUITE 400
ARLINGTON, TEXAS 76011-4005

March 20, 2007

IA-07-002

Mr. Brandon Fontenot
[Home address removed from copies
pursuant to 10 CFR 2.390]

SUBJECT:  NOTICE OF VIOLATION
(NRC INSPECTION REPORT 150-00017/2005-009 AND INVESTIGATION
REPORT 4-2006-015)

Dear Mr. Fontenot:

This refers to the predecisional enforcement conference conducted with you and my staff on
February 12, 2007, in the NRC Region IV office in Arlington, Texas. The conference was
conducted to review whether you engaged in deliberate misconduct during the conduct of
radiography activities in offshore waters in the Gulf of Mexico on December 20, 2005. The
inspection and investigation findings were described to you during a telephonic exit briefing on
January 22, 2007, and were documented to you in our January 26, 2007, letter identifying an
apparent violation of the deliberate misconduct rule.

Based on the information developed during the inspection and investigation, which includes
your May 10 and September 5, 2006, interviews with our investigator, and the information you
provided during the conference, the NRC has determined that you engaged in deliberate
misconduct, in violation of 10 CFR 30.10. The violation is cited in the enclosed Notice of
Violation (Notice) (Enclosure 1). The violation involves your deliberate failures to: (1) secure a
radiographic exposure device on December 20, 2005, and (2) provide complete and accurate
information in the daily radiation survey form which you provided to an NRC inspector. In each
case, your deliberate actions placed your former employer, Accurate NDE & Inspection, LLC in
violation of NRC requirements. Enclosure 2 includes a copy of the Notice of Violation and
Proposed Imposition of Civil Penalty issued to Accurate NDE & Inspection, LLC. Given the
significance of the underlying issue and the deliberate nature of your actions, your violation of
10 CFR 30.10 has been categorized in accordance with the NRC Enforcement Policy at
Severity Level Il

In determining the appropriate sanction to be issued in this case, the NRC considered issuing
an Order prohibiting your involvement in NRC-licensed activities as a result of your actions.
However, after consultation with the Director, Office of Enforcement, and after considering the
circumstances of this case, including the facts that: (1) the actual safety significance was low,
and (2) Accurate NDE & Inspection, LLC took disciplinary action against you, | have decided to
issue the enclosed Notice of Violation. You should be aware that if you are involved in NRC-
licensed activities in the future, additional deliberate violations could result in more significant
enforcement action or criminal prosecution.
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You are required to respond to this letter and should follow the instructions specified in the
enclosed Notice when preparing your response. The NRC will use your response, in part, to
determine whether further enforcement action is necessary to ensure compliance with
regulatory requirements.

You may request alternative dispute resolution (ADR) with the NRC in an attempt to resolve this
issue. ADR is a general term encompassing various techniques for resolving conflict outside of
court using a neutral third party. The technique that the NRC has decided to employ is
mediation. Additional information concerning the NRC’s program is described in the enclosed
brochure (NUREG/BR-0317) and can be obtained at http://www.nrc.gov/about-nrc/requlatory/
enforcement/adr.html (Enclosure 3). The Institute on Conflict Resolution (ICR) at Cornell
University has agreed to facilitate the NRC’s program as a neutral participant. Please contact
ICR at 877-733-9415 within 10 days of the date of this letter if you are interested in pursing
resolution of this issue through ADR.

In accordance with 10 CFR 2.390 of the NRC's "Rules of Practice," a copy of this letter, its
enclosures, and your response, if you choose to provide one, will be made available
electronically for public inspection in the NRC Public Document Room or from the NRC’s
document system (ADAMS), accessible from the NRC Web site at http://www.nrc.gov/reading-
rm/adams.html. To the extent possible, your response should not include any personal privacy,
proprietary, or safeguards information so that it can be made available to the Public without
redaction unless you provide a sufficient basis to withdraw this violation within the 30 days
specified above for a response to this Notice of Violation. The NRC also includes significant
enforcement actions on its Web site at http://www.nrc.gov/reading-rm/doc-collections/
enforcement/actions/.

This letter will be maintained by the Office of Enforcement in an NRC Privacy Act system of
records, NRC-3, “Enforcement Actions Against Individuals.” The NRC-3 system notice, which
provides detailed information about this system of records, can be accessed from the NRC
Web site at http://www.nrc.gov/reading-rm/foia/privacy-systems.html .

If you have any questions, please contact Messrs. Michael Vasquez or Mark Haire of my staff
toll free at (800) 952-9677.

Sincerely,
/RA/

Bruce S. Mallett
Regional Administrator

Enclosures:
1. Notice of Violation
2. Notice of Violation and Proposed Imposition
of Civil Penalty to Accurate NDE & Inspection, LLC (individual only)
3. ADR Brochure - NUREG/BR-0317 (individual only)
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cc w/Enclosure 1:
Louisiana Radiation Control Program Director

American Society for Nondestructive Testing
ATTN: Technical Services Manager

1711 Arlingate Lane

P. O. Box 28518

Columbus, Ohio 43228-0518



NOTICE OF VIOLATION

Mr. Brandon Fontenot I1A-07-002
[HOME ADDRESS DELETED
UNDER 10 CFR 2.390(a)]

During an NRC inspection and investigation which were completed on January 22, 2007, a
violation of NRC requirements was identified. In accordance with the NRC Enforcement Policy,
the violation is listed below:

10 CFR 30.10(a)(1) states, in part, that any employee of a licensee may not engage in
deliberate misconduct that causes a licensee to be in violation of any rule, regulation, or
order; or any term, condition, or limitation of any license issued by the Commission.

10 CFR 150.20(a) provides in part that any person who holds a specific license from an
Agreement State is granted an NRC general license to conduct the same activity in
offshore waters provided that the provisions of 10 CFR 150.20(b) have been met. 10
CFR 150.20(b) requires, in part that general licensees are subject to all the provisions of
the Act, now or hereafter in effect, and to all applicable rules, regulations and orders of
the Commission.

10 CFR 20.1801 requires that the licensee secure from unauthorized removal or access
licensed materials that are stored in controlled or unrestricted areas. 10 CFR 20.1802
requires that the licensee control and maintain constant surveillance of licensed material
that is in a controlled or unrestricted area and that is not in storage. As defined in

10 CFR 20.1003, controlled area means an area, outside of a restricted area but inside
the site boundary, access to which can be limited by the licensee for any reason; and
unrestricted area means an area, access to which is neither limited nor controlled by the
licensee.

10 CFR 30.9(a) requires, in part, that information provided to the Commission by a
licensee, or information required by the Commission’s regulations to be maintained by
the licensee, shall be complete and accurate in all material respects.

Contrary to the above, on December 20, 2005, Mr. Brandon Fontenot engaged in
deliberate misconduct that caused his former employer, Accurate NDE & Inspection,
LLC, to be in violation of 10 CFR 20.1801 and 1802, and 10 CFR 30.9. W.ith regard to
10 CFR 20.1801 and 1802, Mr. Fontenot did not secure from unauthorized removal or
limit access to a radiographic exposure device containing 16 curies of Ir-192 in the dark
room, an unrestricted area, on a platform in the Gulf of Mexico. Specifically, he left the
exposure device in the dark room when he knew the dark room was not locked.

ENCLOSURE
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With regard to 10 CFR 30.9, Mr. Fontenot provided to an NRC inspector the daily
radiation report for December 18, 2005, that had information that was not complete and
accurate in all material respects. The daily radiation report was inaccurate because it
indicated that the radiographer’s assistant had the personnel monitoring equipment
required by 10 CFR 34.47(a), when in actuality the assistant left his required personnel
monitoring equipment onshore. Specifically, the report documented the radiographer
assistant’s dosimetry information, including the start and finish radiation exposure data
from the assistant’s pocket ionization chamber (which he did not have). This is material
because this information erroneously indicates compliance with 10 CFR 34.47(a).

This is a Severity Level Il violation (Supplement VII).

Pursuant to the provisions of 10 CFR 2.201, Mr. Brandon Fontenot is hereby required to submit
a written statement or explanation to the U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission, ATTN:
Regional Administrator, Region IV, 611 Ryan Plaza Drive, Suite 400, Arlington, Texas 76011,
and marked "Open by Addressee Only,” within 30 days of the date of the letter transmitting this
Notice of Violation (Notice). This reply should be clearly marked as a "Reply to a Notice of
Violation; 1A-07-001" and should include for each violation: (1) the reason for the violation, or, if
contested, the basis for disputing the violation, (2) the corrective steps that have been taken
and the results achieved, (3) the corrective steps that will be taken to avoid further violations,
and (4) the date when full compliance will be achieved. If an adequate reply is not received
within the time specified in this Notice, an order or a Demand for Information may be issued as
to why such other action as may be proper should not be taken. Where good cause is shown,
consideration will be given to extending the response time.

If you contest this enforcement action, you should also provide a copy of your response, with
the basis for your denial, to the Director, Office of Enforcement, United States Nuclear
Regulatory Commission, Washington, DC 20555-0001.

Because your response will be made available electronically for public inspection in the NRC
Public Document Room or from the NRC’s document system (ADAMS), accessible from the
NRC Web site at http://www.nrc.gov/reading-rm/adams.html, to the extent possible, it should
not include any personal privacy, proprietary, or safeguards information so that it can be made
available to the public without redaction. If personal privacy or proprietary information is
necessary to provide an acceptable response, then please provide a bracketed copy of your
response that identifies the information that should be protected and a redacted copy of your
response that deletes such information. If you request withholding of such material, you must
specifically identify the portions of your response that you seek to have withheld and provide in
detail the bases for your claim of withholding (e.g., explain why the disclosure of information will
create an unwarranted invasion of personal privacy or provide the information required by

10 CFR 2.390(b) to support a request for withholding confidential commercial or financial
information). This letter will be maintained by the Office of Enforcement in an NRC Privacy Act
system of records, NRC-3, “Enforcement Actions Against Individuals.” The NRC-3 system
notice, which provides detailed information about this system of records, can be accessed from
the NRC Web site at http://www.nrc.gov/reading-rm/foia/privacy-systems.htmi .

Dated this 20™ day of March, 2007
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